
Michelle Morris, 
Managing Director / Rheolwr Gyfarwyddwr 

 
T: 01495 356011 Ext./Est: 6011 
 
E: committee.services@blaenau-gwent.gov.uk 
 
Contact:/Cysylltwch â: Democratic Services 

 

 
 

 

 
 

THIS IS A MEETING WHICH THE PUBLIC ARE ENTITLED TO ATTEND 

 
22nd July 2021 
 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 
PUBLIC SERVICES BOARD SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
A meeting of the Public Services Board Scrutiny Committee will be held in 
Virtually Via Microsoft Teams (if you would like to attend this meeting live via 
Microsoft Teams please contact committee.services@blaenau-gwent.gov.uk) 
on Tuesday, 27th July, 2021 at 4.30 pm. 
 
Please note that a pre and post meeting will be held 30 minutes prior to 
the start and following the conclusion of the meeting for members of the 
committee. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 

 
 
Michelle Morris  
Managing Director 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



 

 

AGENDA Pages 
 
1.   SIMULTANEOUS TRANSLATION 

 
 

 You are welcome to use Welsh at the meeting, a 
minimum notice period of 3 working days is required 
should you wish to do so.  A simultaneous translation 
will be provided if requested. 
 

 

2.   APOLOGIES 
 

 

 To receive apologies for absence. 
 

 

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND 
DISPENSATIONS 
 

 

 To receive any declarations of interest and 
dispensations made. 
 

 

4.   PUBLIC SERVICES BOARD SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

3 - 12 

 To receive the Minutes of the Public Services Board 
Scrutiny Committee held on 15th April, 2021. 
 
(Please note the Minutes are submitted for points of 
accuracy only) 
 

 

5.   MOVE TOWARDS REGIONAL GWENT PSB 
 

13 - 30 

 To consider the report of the Managing Director. 
 

 

     
 
 
To: Councillor M. Cook (Vice-Chair) 

Councillor S. Healy (Chair) 
Councillor P. Baldwin 
Councillor M. Cross 
Councillor G. A. Davies 
Councillor C. Meredith 
Councillor J. Millard 
Councillor M. Moore 
Councillor J. P. Morgan 
Councillor G. Paulsen 
Councillor S. Thomas 
Councillor H. Trollope 

Page 2



 

 

Councillor J. Holt 
Councillor J. Hill 
Councillor J. C. Morgan 
Councillor N. Daniels 
 

 All other Members (for information) 
Manager Director 
Chief Officers 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



COUNTY BOROUGH OF BLAENAU GWENT 
 

REPORT TO: THE CHAIR AND MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
SERVICES BOARD SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

  
SUBJECT: PUBLIC SERVICES BOARD SCRUTINY  

COMMITTEE – 15TH APRIL, 2021 
  
REPORT OF: DEMOCRATIC & COMMITTEE SUPPORT OFFICER 

 
 

 
PRESENT: COUNCILLOR S. HEALY (CHAIR) 
 

Councillors M. Cook 
       P. Baldwin 
       G.A. Davies 
       J. Hill 

   J. Holt 
   C. Meredith 
   J. Millard 
   M. Moore 

        J.C. Morgan 
       G. Paulsen 

   S. Thomas 
   H. Trollope 

 
WITH: Service Manager, Policy and Partnerships 
 Alison Palmer, Deputy Chief Executive Officer GAVO  

 Kathryn Cross, Service Lead Integrated Wellbeing Networks 
   David Arnold, Policy Officer (PSB) 

 Scrutiny and Democratic Officer/Adviser 
  

 
ITEM 

 
SUBJECT 
 

 
ACTION 

  
The Committee observed a one minute silence in memory 
of His Royal Highness Prince Philip, the Duke of Edinburgh. 
 

 

No. 1 SIMULTANEOUS TRANSLATION 
 
It was noted that no requests had been received for the 
simultaneous translation service. 
 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



No. 2 APOLOGIES 
 
There were no apologies for absence reported. 
 

 

No. 3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND DISPENSATIONS 
 
Councillor M. Moore and Councillor G. Paulsen declared an 
interest in item 6 - Age-friendly Communities Programme - 
Progress update. 
 

 

No. 4 PUBLIC SERVICES BOARD SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
Consideration was given to the Minutes of the Meeting held 
on 25th February, 2021. 
 
The Committee AGREED that the Minutes be accepted as 
a true record of proceedings. 
 

 

No. 5 ACTION SHEET - 25TH FEBRUARY 2021 
 
Consideration was given to the Action Sheet from the 
meeting held on 25th February, 2021. 
 
The Committee AGREED that the Action Sheet be noted. 
 

 

No. 6 AGE-FRIENDLY COMMUNITIES PROGRAMME 
PROGRESS UPDATE 
 
Councillors M. Moore and G. Paulsen declared an interest 
in the following item and remained in the meeting. 
 
Consideration was given to the report of the Chief 
Executive Officer, GAVO. 
 
The Deputy Chief Executive Officer GAVO advised that the 
report presented a progress update regarding the PSB’s 
Age-Friendly Communities programme and highlighted the 
work being undertaken with the Council’s Engagement 
Team to develop this programme.  She reported that there 
had been delays due to the impact of Covid on 
communities, however, work was now starting to progress.  
A Steering Group was now operating and the Community 
Development Manager from GAVO was supporting the 50+ 
Forum to revise and strengthen their governance 
documents.  A third sector Engagement Officer from GAVO 

 

Page 6



had been appointed shared between Blaenau Gwent and 
Caerphilly County Borough Councils to provide additional 
staffing to support the work moving forward. 
 
A Member commented that the one positive aspect from 
Covid was that it had brought communities together to 
support each other.  Tenants and residents in Tredegar and 
other areas had been helping to deliver food parcels in 
conjunction with Social Services and had established links 
with hard to reach groups such as the elderly and most 
vulnerable people and he hoped these links would continue 
post-Covid.  The Deputy CEO agreed there had been a 
magnificent response from the community right across the 
county.  There had been a wider range of age groups 
supporting the community, and the organisation were 
considering some intergenerational work with those 
younger people that had experienced volunteering, 
perhaps for the first time on a community level, to retain that 
volunteering role to continue that community spirit.  She felt 
this would support the age friendly communities work and 
the understanding between generations. 
 
The Policy Officer commented that all the information 
gathered through the community groups providing services 
in response to the pandemic, the Council’s locality 
response teams, the volunteers they work with and the 
Integrated Wellbeing Networks programme, could be 
brought together and built into the Age-friendly 
Communities programme. 
 
A Member referred to paragraph 2.4 virtual events and 
activities, the Deputy CEO said that in order to retain some 
virtual activities there would need to be a blended 
approach, for instance if support could be provided to those 
people who were housebound to learn new technologies 
this would widen their opportunities to be involved. 
Community centres were not fully open as there were still 
restrictions in place and as such there was a need to look 
at different ways to provide services whilst recognising 
there were individuals who still did not have links to digital 
technologies. 
 
A Member referred to CHAD a disabilities group who 
refurbish computers bespoke to the individual’s disability. 
The Deputy CEO was aware of this group and other similar 

Page 7



groups such as Digital Cymru, the Wales Co-op initiative 
who loan out equipment and other initiatives whereby 
tablets and laptops were provided to Care Homes for 
residents to communicate with their families and would look 
at how to build on these initiatives in the near future.  
 
The Committee AGREED to recommend that the report be 
accepted and endorse Option 1; namely that the Public 
Services Board Scrutiny Committee accept the report and 
appendices as provided prior to it being submitted to the 
Public Services Board.  
 

No. 7 BLAENAU GWENT PARTICIPATORY BUDGET 
PROGRAMME 
 
Consideration was given to the report of the Service 
Manager Policy & Partnerships. 
 
The Service Manager Policy and Partnerships advised that 
the report provided an update on progress achieved 
towards a Blaenau Gwent Participatory Budget programme 
overseen by the Public Services Board.  In relation to the 
Participatory Budget £100,000 had been identified to take 
this process forward in 2021/22, and he informed Members 
that further funding could be available during this financial 
year. 
 
In response to a Member’s question regarding the use of 
consultants, the Service Manager said that additional 
funding had been requested from partner organisations to 
reduce the amount of money spent on a consultancy 
approach.  Discussions had been held with the 
Participatory Budget (PB) Steering Group on the most 
suitable approach to take forward and they had 
recommended that the services of a consultant who 
specialised in delivering virtual Participatory Budget 
programmes be employed to oversee delivery of the 
programme.  This would ensure that the Participatory 
Budget was effectively operated with appropriate advice 
and guidance and the community provided with the best 
opportunity to take forward grant arrangements.  The 
Member felt it would be more appropriate to refer to 
consultants as specialist contractors in relation to the 
Participatory Budget programme. 
 

 

Page 8



A Member raised concerns regarding future increases to 
specialist contractor’s fees and also stressed the need for 
a wide range of people from the community to participate 
on the PB Steering Group to ensure greater coverage of 
skills and suggested the Council’s Citizen’s Panel could be 
invited to participate as part of this programme.  The 
Service Manager reassured Members that a capped fee 
arrangement had been put in place regarding the specialist 
contractor’s fees to ensure value for money.  In relation to 
the community involvement in setting out the Steering 
arrangements, he again reassured Members that the 
intention was to ensure that all communities were actively 
involved to represent the public and to ensure that it is an 
effective process.  He felt that with the involvement of the 
specialist contractor, they would have the experience to 
reach the right people and advise on what had worked well 
in other areas.  He would take the Members comments on 
board as part of the Steering process.  
 
A Member enquired regarding the actual cost of the 
specialist contractor and other partner’s contribution 
towards that cost.  The Service Manager said from the 
£100,000, 10% could be deemed for administrative fees.  
Feedback from a specific specialist contractor was that the 
fee could potentially be £14,000 to £18,000, depending on 
the number of events held.  This had been reported back to 
the Public Services Board to identify additional funding 
beyond this grant to support that process, and a number of 
Public Services Board partners had identified additional 
funding to support their arrangement, although there was 
no specific figure at this stage.  From a scrutiny perspective 
there would be clarity on the actual spend and this would 
be monitored by the Public Services Board Scrutiny 
Committee and reported to the Public Services Board in 
accordance with monitoring arrangements outlined in the 
report.  
 
He advised that the Steering Group would set the 
arrangements around what could be bid for and felt this was 
a good opportunity for elected Members to get messages 
out to community groups and organisations to take part in 
this opportunity.   He added that as this was a community 
based project all elected Members would be kept up to date 
on progress and key information on how to be actively 
involved.  He felt the use of a specialist contractor was a 

Page 9



real opportunity to ensure this was a success in Blaenau 
Gwent. 
 
A Member commented that the use of a specialist 
contractor in this instance was money well spent as a 
number of community groups and organisations would be 
looking to apply for money and the process needed to be 
open and transparent.  The Service Manager pointed out 
that the specialist contractor was a very successful 
company in ensuring that the participatory budgeting 
processes across the UK were implemented effectively and 
provided the maximum benefits in the community.  
 
The Committee AGREED to recommend that the report be 
accepted and endorse Option 1; namely that the Public 
Services Board Scrutiny Committee accept the report as 
provided prior to it being submitted to the Public Services 
Board. 
 

No. 8 GWENT REGIONAL WELL-BEING ASSESSMENT 
 
Consideration was given to the report of the Service 
Manager Policy & Partnerships. 
 
The Service Manager Policy and Partnerships gave an 
overview of the report and advised that the report was 
provided to outline the statutory requirements for 
consultation on the assessment of local well-being and 
highlighted options for how the Public Services Board 
(PSB) Scrutiny Committee can fulfil their role as a statutory 
consultee. 
 
In relation to the regional grant funding from the Welsh 
Government, the Chair enquired when the outcome of the 
application would be known.  The Service Manager advised 
there was £78,000 available for the region, the application 
that had been submitted was fully compliant with the terms 
and conditions as set out in the criteria and hoped to be 
informed of the outcome imminently.   
 
A Member commented that this was a large piece of work 
that needed to encompass hard to reach groups in the 
community such as the elderly, the most isolated, the 
disabled and young people especially Comprehensive age 
pupils and College students, who had had a difficult and 

 

Page 10



challenging year, especially with examinations due to the 
pandemic.  Most schools now had a dedicated Well-being 
Teacher or Tutor and Link Governor in place to support 
youngsters and he felt the report should specifically reflect 
youngster’s views. 
 
The Service Manager clarified that this was a population 
based Well-being Assessment and encompassed all of our 
communities and would consider the different parts of the 
community to look at the differences and consequences 
and take this forward via the pillars of Well-being which 
were economic, social, environmental and cultural. 
Children and young people would have a big impact across 
these areas specifically from an education perspective and 
linking in with schools.   He pointed out that one of the 
principles in para 6.1 read ‘Consider well-being in Gwent in 
light of changing contextual circumstances and understand 
the implications of emerging challenges (e.g. COVID-19 
pandemic, green recovery, EU Transition).  He reassured 
Members that all areas of well-being would be investigated 
and would ensure links with schools through the Well-being 
Champions was progressed through the Engagement 
Team and Sub Groups.  There had been a lot of progress 
in relation to well-being in schools and the new curriculum 
looked to place a strong focus on well-being, he was aware 
that Blaenau Gwent pupils had, in the past, participated in 
national well-being surveys and he would look out for that 
intelligence and data to investigate the issues raised.   
 
A Member referred to old age pensioners and senior 
citizens and stressed they had no community connect at all 
during the pandemic and felt that every effort should be 
made to include this group of people.  The Service Manager 
said that Members had identified two very important groups 
of populations and, as a whole population approach there 
was a requirement to look across the borough at all groups.  
He added that work was also being carried out around 
Community Impact Assessments in both of these areas at 
a Local Authority level and also with partners, he gave an 
example regarding the earlier paper which considered the 
Age-friendly community.  The team were working closely 
with partners regarding understanding the impact of 
COVID-19 and other issues on specific populations and all 
that information would be tied into the Well-being 
Assessment process and allow the partnership to focus on 

Page 11



specific issues around the Assessment of Well-being 
moving forward.  He added that the team would be actively 
looking to ensure that the appropriate links were made.  
 
A Member requested clarification on the way this group 
would be set up and who would be responsible for 
producing the final report.  The Service Manager clarified 
that the Public Services Board would be responsible for 
putting a Well-being Assessment in place.  However, the 
PSB was made up of statutory partners so in essence it was 
the statutory partners responsibility to ensure this was 
delivered.  He explained that a current project plan was 
being developed to ensure that the four pillars of Well-being 
i.e. economic, social, cultural and environmental aspects 
were fully analysed, considered and taken forward.  Subject 
to agreement, there would be one document, an 
Assessment of Well-being, put in place for Gwent and that 
document would be presented for scrutiny to the 
appropriate committee for consideration.  He reassured 
Members that Blaenau Gwent would be involved in all the 
key areas to ensure that comments from key groups were 
taken into consideration. 
 
The Service Manager commented that this was the first 
time a Regional Well-being Assessment was being 
developed and said that discussions around the differences 
between the five local authority areas had been considered.  
It had been recognised that any Gwent Well-being 
approach needed to have a consistent way of considering 
the region as a whole. The current arrangements for the 
Blaenau Gwent Well-being Plan looked at the four Well-
being areas in the borough, and negotiations were being 
held for those geographical areas to remain as they are.  
The report would consider geographical analysis from all 
five local authorities to look for differences and to ensure 
that any differences are highlighted and carried forward as 
part of that planning process. 
 
A brief discussion ensued and upon a vote being taken; 
 
The Committee AGREED to recommend that the report be 
accepted and endorse Option 2; namely that the Public 
Services Board Scrutiny Committee considered the report 
and provided the following specific comment for 

Page 12



consideration by the Public Services Board before 
approval; 
 

 That a consistent approach to engagement be 
delivered with an emphasis on hard to reach groups, 
including youngsters and pupils from comprehensive 
schools and colleges and older people groups. 

 
The Committee FURTHER AGREED to receive a further 
report on the movement to a regional PSB as part of the 
forward work programme. 
 

No. 9 INTEGRATED WELL-BEING NETWORK  
FOR BLAENAU GWENT 
 

Consideration was given to the joint report of the  
Director of Public Health, Aneurin Bevan University Health 
Board and the Service Lead Integrated Wellbeing 
Networks. 
 
The Service Lead Integrated Wellbeing Networks advised 
that the report provided an update on the progress made 
against implementation of the regional Integrated Well-
being Network transformation programme in Blaenau 
Gwent.  She informed Members that Covid had impacted 
greatly on this initiative and therefore had to deviate from 
the original objectives.  In relation to health and well-being, 
efforts had been realigned with the community to support 
accessing services across the borough to maintain positive 
well-being at home during lockdown periods.   
 
A Member commented that Tredegar town centre was now 
a free wi-fi centre as funding had been secured for the next 
three years and felt it was important to make the community 
aware of this.  The Service Lead agreed to advertise the 
free wi-fi in Tredegar town centre through network groups. 
  
In response to a Member’s question regarding access to 
befriending services, the Service Lead advised that this 
was a specific befriending service, pre-Covid befriending 
was identified as a key priority.   A voluntary organisation in 
Abergavenny had wanted to expand their befriending 
service into the Brynmawr area and after consultation, 
some befrienders had been recruited, pre-Covid, to that 
befriending service and as Covid developed the befriending 

 

Page 13



service was rolled out to the whole of Blaenau Gwent and 
further.  Currently the voluntary organisation was at full 
capacity but had secured additional funding to be able to 
increase capacity across Blaenau Gwent. 
 
The Committee AGREED to recommend that the report be 
accepted and endorse Option 1; namely that the Public 
Services Board Scrutiny Committee accept the report and 
appendices as provided prior to it being submitted to the 
Public Services Board. 
 

 As this was the last Public Services Board Scrutiny 
Committee in the cycle the Chair thanked Members and 
officers for their contributions and support over the last 
year. 
 

 

 

Page 14



Executive Committee and Council only 
Date signed off by the Monitoring Officer: N/A 
Date signed off by the Section 151 Officer: N/A  

 

Committee:  PSB Scrutiny Committee 

Date of meeting:  27th July 2021 

Report Subject:  Move towards Regional Gwent PSB 

Portfolio Holder: Cllr Nigel Daniels, Leader / Executive Member 
Corporate Services 

Report Submitted by: Michelle Morris, Managing Director, BGCBC 
 

Reporting Pathway 
Directorate 

Management 
Team 

Corporate 
Leadership 

Team 

Portfolio 
Holder / 

Chair 

Audit 
Committee 

Democratic 
Services 

Committee 

Scrutiny 
Committee 

Executive 
Committee 

Council Other 
(please 
state) 

 12.07.21 15.07.21   27.07.21  30.07.21  

 

1. Purpose of the Report 
1.1 To update members on the development of a regional ‘Gwent’ PSB, and the 

next round of the Assessment of Local Well-being and Local Well-being 
Plans, and to note any relevant governance changes required for the local 
authority and its committees.  
 
A version of this report is being received by partnership Scrutiny 
Committees across Gwent for awareness and Cabinet/ Council for 
decision making as appropriate.  

  
2. 
 
2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Scope and Background 
 
The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 is about improving 
the social, economic, environmental and cultural well-being of Wales.  The 
Act sets out a collective well-being duty on specified public bodies to act 
jointly via public services boards (PSBs) to improve the economic, social, 
environmental and cultural well-being of their area by contributing to the 
achievement of the well-being goals. 
 
As part of this collective well-being duty, the PSB must: 

 Prepare and publish an assessment of the state of economic, social, 
environmental and cultural well-being in each community, and in the 
area as a whole, to be published no later than a year before its local 
well-being plan. 

 Prepare and publish a local well-being plan setting out its local 
objectives and the steps it proposes to take to meet them, published 
no later than 12 months after each local election.  
 

The first local well-being assessments were published in May 2017.  The 
first local well-being plans were published in May 2018 for Blaenau Gwent, 
Caerphilly, Monmouthshire, Newport and Torfaen.  The next round of the 
well-being assessment and well-being plan are due to be published in May 
2022 and May 2023 respectively.   
 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5



  
 

  

2.4 
 
 
2.5 
 
 
2.6 
 
 
 
 
2.7 
 
 
 
 
2.8 
 
2.9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2.10 
 
 
 
 
 

The existing PSB partnership structure across Gwent is attached at 
Appendix 1.  
 
The Act also provides for two or more PSBs to be able to merge if it would 
assist them in contributing to the achievement of the well-being goals. 
 
There have been discussions at the Gwent-wide leadership group ‘G10’ and 
at each PSB about the merger of the Gwent PSBs to form a single regional 
PSB. The decision to do this must be agreed by each of the individual PSBs 
as the statutory bodies.   
 
Each PSB in the Gwent region has agreed this in principle.  The PSBs and 
G10 have also considered the importance of maintaining strong local 
partnerships in each area to support delivery of the Well-Being Plan and 
also other partnership work. 
 
The future regional PSB partnership structure is attached at Appendix 2. 
 
The drivers for the change to a regional approach and Plan considered by the 
G10 leadership were: 

 improving the well-being of people across Gwent by strengthening 
governance, accountability, improving collaborative working and 
supporting a clearer partnership landscape; 

 providing the catalyst for a regional well-being assessment and well-
being plan that maintains local accountability.  

 opportunities to align partnership legislation and PSB statutory duties 
for a more strategic overview of areas such the Crime and Disorder 
Act, Violence Against Women Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence 
(VAWDASV) and the Childrens Act.  

 opportunity to develop regional scrutiny arrangements. 

 opportunity of aligning the focus of both the Regional Partnership 
Board (RPB) and PSB that will reduce duplication of activity, align 
strategic priorities and much closer collaboration over assessment, 
planning and delivery functions. 

 The approach supports the Welsh Government review on ‘strategic 
partnerships’ and specifically recommendation 3 of the recent Audit 
Wales Review of Public Services Boards1.  
 

There is a range of effective partnership work which takes place through the 
G10 leaders group and subgroup GSWAG (Gwent Strategic Well-being 
Action Group) which has also attracted funding through Welsh Government 
and delivery of work such as ‘Climate Ready Gwent’ however there is not 
one strategic direction for this work that a regional assessment and plan 
would provide.  

                                                           
1 Recommendation 3 of the WAO Review pf Public Services Boards includes ‘…….that Welsh Gov enables flexible 

models for merging, reducing and integrating their work with other forums such as Regional Partnership Boards; 

and ‒ giving PSBs flexibility to receive, manage and spend grant monies ……’ 

 

Page 16



  
 

  

2.11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.12 

The current Well-Being Plans (2018-2023) form the delivery arrangements 
for the next two years and these will continue to be delivered by the local 
partnerships (One Newport; The Blaenau Gwent We Want; The Caerphilly 
We Want; Our Monmouthshire; Torfaen Public Services Board) supported by 
the regional PSB, and scrutinised by partnership Scrutiny Committees in 
each of the local areas. 
 
A timeline for this activity can be found at Appendix 3 to this report. 
 
Arrangements for Regional Scrutiny are being discussed among democratic 
services leads and the aim is to conclude this to meet the approval 
requirements of the local assessment of well-being needs.  The scrutiny of 
the existing well-being plans is continuing through local Scrutiny in each 
individual area until 2023, as highlighted later in this report.  

 Options for Recommendation  
3. Option 1 (Preferred Option) 

The Committee consider and agree the following recommendations: 
 
Recommendation 1: To move to a regional PSB as outlined in the report 
with the importance of maintaining strong local partnerships.  
 
Recommendation 2: To establish regional scrutiny and the developing 
arrangements, and to receive further details as appropriate.   
 
Recommendation 3: The local assessment of well-being, to be agreed by 
5th May 2022, will be part of the PSB Scrutiny Committee work programme 
for 2021/22. 
 
Recommendation 4: To support the proposed regional PSB terms of 
reference (Appendix 5), and requirements to make any relevant changes to 
committee structures and constitution. 
 
Recommendation 5: The development of Local Delivery Partnerships to be 
considered in local scrutiny work programmes. 
 
Recommendation 6: To continue to support Scrutiny of the current Well-
Being Plans to 2023 through existing local partnership Scrutiny 
arrangements. 
 
  
Option 2  
The Committee consider and agree the recommendation in Option 1 and 
provide specific comment(s) for consideration. 

  
4. Evidence of how does this topic supports the achievement of the 

Corporate Plan / Statutory Responsibilities / Blaenau Gwent Well-being 
Plan 
This report is in-line with the requirements of the Well-being of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 2015. 
 

Page 17



  
 

  

The Council will need to consider changes to its constitution and committee 
terms of reference, as a consequence of the proposed changes to delivering 
the statutory functions of the Act. 
 

5. Implications Against Each Option  
5.1 Impact on Budget (short and long term impact) 

Individual Public Service Boards are not core funded bodies, project activity 
is either core funded through partner organisations or via Welsh Government 
grant therefore there are no financial risks to developing a regional PSB. 
 

5.2 Risk including Mitigating Actions 
  
Statutory Requirement for PSBs - Good progress is being made by 
officers of the PSB member organisations and development of the 
assessment of well-being is on track to meet statutory timelines.  Subject to 
reports passing through internal governance structures the Gwent PSB 
should be able to form from September 2021, with provisional first meeting 
date looking to be set.  
 
Once the regional body is in place there will be no local Public Service Board. 
Statutory functions and reporting will go to the regional board; however, local 
scrutiny arrangements continue to remain in place. 
 
Delivery Blaenau Gwent Well-being Plan 2018-2023 
The on-going objectives in each of the well-being plans will continue to be 
delivered through the local partnership teams, therefore any considerations 
and issues to the current well-being plan and projects associated with that 
plan will continue effectively met. 
 

5.3 Legal 
 
Terms of Reference for Gwent PSB 
The draft Terms of Reference at Appendix 5 have been developed based on 
the 5 existing terms of reference, Schedule 3 to the Act, the reported 
discussions at the meetings to dissolve the existing PSBs and the discussions 
at G10. 
 
The terms of reference must be agreed at the first meeting of the Gwent PSB 
(Schedule 4 Article 4). However, further development is needed to support the 
proposed Local Delivery Partnerships.  This is an important consideration 
raised by each local authority area and the supporting partner organisations. 
 
The terms of reference can be agreed by the four statutory partners acting 
together, however given the ‘collaboration’ element of the sustainable 
development principle they will be agreed by the full set of members of the 
new board at its first meeting.  It has been agreed in-principle that all members 
of the regional PSB whether statutory or invited will have equal voting rights.   
 
The terms of reference and membership of the local Delivery Partnerships 
have not yet been drafted but will also need to be considered at the first 

Page 18



  
 

  

meeting of the Gwent PSB to ensure continuity of delivery of the 5 existing 
well-being plans which run until 2023.  
 
Administering PSBs is a responsibility that falls to the local authorities. To 
ensure that this is shared equally there is in-principle agreement that this 
rotates around the five local authorities but on a two-year rotation to provide 
some continuity. The draft terms of references suggest that the Chair holds 
the role for a period of two years. Where a local authority holds the position 
of chair the administration role should move with that chair.   Although other 
organisations may Chair a PSB, a local authority must chair the first meeting 
of the PSB and every mandatory meeting (after a local government election) 
thereafter. 
 

5.4 Human Resources  
The regional Gwent PSB is being developed collaboratively with 
representatives from all Gwent local authority areas being actively involved 
from a governance and support perspective. 
 
Progress against the overall move towards a regional PSB is reported to the 
PSB via a PSB Strategic Support Group, which in turn is supported by the 
PSB Engagement Sub-Group. 
 
The Council’s Policy, Partnerships and Engagement Team is responsible for 
the administration and coordination of the current Blaenau Gwent PSB so it 
is expected that role will continue for the new Local Delivery Partnership. 
 

6 Supporting Evidence 
6.1 
 
 
 
 
6.1.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6.1.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Performance Information and Data  
Each of the five PSBs Blaenau Gwent, Caerphilly, Monmouth, Newport, 
Torfaen have discussed the proposal and agreed collectively to disband the 
local PSB and form a regional PSB.  
 
Officer groups across Gwent have been reviewing and developing: 

 Terms of reference 

 Progress towards a Gwent well-being assessment and plan, including 
engagement  

 Local Delivery Partnership arrangements 

 Membership of the Gwent PSB 

 Regional scrutiny arrangements  

 Performance 

 Links to other regional boards 

 Openness, transparency and identity of the Gwent PSB  
 
The terms of reference and membership of the local delivery partnerships 
have not yet been drafted but will also need to be agreed at the first meeting 
of the Gwent PSB to ensure continuity of delivery of the 5 existing well-being 
plans which run until 2023.  Local delivery partnerships will need to include 
senior officers, with the ability to take decisions and direct resources, from all 
the Gwent PSB member bodies, and any local partners who are currently 
represented on the 5 PSBs but will not be at the Gwent PSB.   

Page 19



  
 

  

 
6.1.3 
 
 
 
 
6.1.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.1.5 
 
 
 
 
6.1.6 
 
 
6.1.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.1.8 
 
 
6.1.9 
 
 
 
 
 
6.1.10 
 
 
 
 
 
6.1.11 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The local delivery partnership arrangements may differ in membership and 
scope but as a minimum will need to provide for the delivery of local 
priorities set out in the Gwent well-being plan and any local contribution to 
regional priorities. 
 
The current thinking is that, for the new Gwent Well-being Plan 2023-2028, 
there are likely to be a set of overarching well-being objectives which will be 
met by regional and local activity.  There are likely to be local actions which 
will be particular to a locality and determined by more local data and 
assessment.  The local delivery partnerships will be tasked with contributing 
to the regional actions as well as delivering any specific local activity. 
 
In order to meet statutory deadlines for the next iteration of the well-being 
assessment and well-being plan the engagement work is underway and there 
are regional sub-groups in place to develop and support delivery of the Gwent 
Well-Being Assessment.   
 
The Gwent PSB inaugural meeting is proposed for September 2021 and the 
members will set their terms of reference and membership at that meeting.  
 
All statutory and invited G10 member organisations (Aneurin Bevan Health 
Board, Blaenau Gwent CBC, Caerphilly CC, Gwent Police, Monmouthshire 
CC, Natural Resources Wales, Newport CC, Office of the PCC, South Wales 
Fire and Rescue Service, Torfaen CBC) are taking reports as appropriate 
within their own governance and this report forms part of the decision 
making for this local authority.  
 
Each partner organisation is responsible for reporting to members and any 
necessary governance changes. 
 
A robust performance framework is essential in facilitating the PSB to improve 
the social, economic, environmental and cultural well-being of Gwent. A 
framework is being developed to provide an integrated mechanism that 
focusses on the performance of partnership and collaborative activity that 
delivers the statutory duties, objectives and priorities of the PSB. 
 
The framework will facilitate the regional PSB to hold the performance of 
delivery of its priorities and responsibilities to account and be accountable for 
its own performance. This will be closely linked to the development of other 
parts of the PSB governance arrangements including scrutiny arrangements, 
terms of reference, other Regional Boards and Local Delivery Partnerships. 
 
The performance framework will need to be driven by a range of qualitative 
and quantitative data, experiences, research and evidence to allow the PSB 
to evaluate progress and impact. The PSB will need to have the skills and 
capacity to support the provision of up-to-date information, analysis and 
insight on well-being of people and places in Gwent. 
 

Page 20



  
 

  

6.1.12 
 
 
 
 
6.1.13 

Each of the current PSBs has an online presence, with their own websites that 
host key information e.g. the local assessment of well-being, the well-being 
plan, annual reports etc. It will be important that this is replicated for a Gwent 
PSB to ensure openness and transparency. 
 
In addition, several PSBs have a social media presence through Twitter and 
Facebook. This includes social media guidance for partners in the use of the 
PSB identity and logos. The Gwent PSB will need to consider its own 
openness and transparency and potentially develop a Gwent identity, 
certainly this will be need for the next round of well-being planning.  This will 
be an early consideration of the new PSB. 
 

6.2 Expected outcome for the public 
The Gwent PSB, local delivery partnerships and the well-being assessment 
process, supported by local engagement and involvement processes, are 
crucial in ensuring that an effective well-being plan for Gwent is developed 
to improve local well-being for the area of Blaenau Gwent.  
 

6.3 Involvement (consultation, engagement, participation) 
The regional well-being assessment (WBA) will need to be complete and 
signed off by the statutory members individually, and by the PSB collectively, 
by the 5th May 2022. The development of the well-being assessment also 
requires the input of the Future Generations Commissioner and Welsh 
Government. All groups are working to the assessment timeline attached at 
Appendix 4. 
 
Consultation has taken place with: 

 PSB Scrutiny 

 All 5 Gwent PSB’s and their existing partners 

 G10 Executive Group 

 Welsh Government 

 Well Being of Future Generations Commissioners Office 
 

6.4 Thinking for the Long term (forward planning)   
The Gwent WBA will outline future trends information and feedback from 
public engagement on what people consider would make the area a better 
place for the future. The Blaenau Gwent local delivery partnership will 
continue to deliver against the current Blaenau Gwent We Want Well-being 
Plan 2018-23. 
 

6.5 Preventative focus  
The Gwent WBA process will focus on a situational analysis which will 
support the Gwent PSB to prioritise which issues it will focus on as part of its 
Well-being Plan. Following the prioritisation further work will be considered 
to understand the appropriate approaches to tackling the issues identified 
locally. 
 
 
 
 

Page 21



  
 

  

6.6 Collaboration / partnership working 
There are a multitude of partnership boards across the Gwent region that 
have been established in line with policy, programme or legislative drivers.  
This is outlined in a diagram at Appendix 4 which shows the Gwent PSB & 
RPB partnership landscape with statutory duties.  

 
Connectedness and alignment of these boards could be improved and 
maximised under the Gwent PSB, particularly where boards are delivering 
activity in-line with the PSB statutory duties, as specified in the PSB 
statutory guidance.   
  
The Gwent PSB, working closely alongside the Gwent RPB, has the 
opportunity to reduce duplication, maximise resources, identify shared 
priorities and achieve closer alignment of policy, programme and legislative 
agendas, which would potentially improve outcomes for citizens across 
Gwent.  
 
Further work is required to map the various boards, key drivers and 
governance across Gwent.   
 

6.7 Integration (across service areas) 
The Gwent PSB and WBA follow an approach of considering the evidence 
gathered under well-being and sustainable development pillars: economic, 
social, cultural and environment issues. 
 

6.8 EqIA 
The engagement approach to the Gwent WBA is built on the national 
principles for public engagement. There are number of established forums 
which support engagement covered by the protected characteristics. A full 
EqIA for the WBA will be carried out. 
 

6.9 
6.9.1 
 
 
 
 
 
6.9.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.9.3 
 
 
 
 

Monitoring Arrangements  
The development of regional scrutiny arrangements for the Gwent PSB and 
its assessment and planning will continue over the coming months and will 
need to be collaborative in the approach to membership and interaction with 
the local Scrutiny Committees, particularly during the interim period ahead of 
the new Well-Being Plan. 
 
Officers are working with the Scrutiny Managers in each of the five local 
authorities to work through how the proposed Regional Scrutiny will function 
in terms of its membership, terms of reference, continued scrutiny of the 5 
existing well-being plans until 2023, community safety scrutiny (Police and 
Justice Act 2006), scrutiny of local delivery under the new Gwent Well-being 
Plan 2023-2028, host authority etc. 
 
Ongoing Scrutiny of the current Well-Being Plans continues within the local 
partnership Scrutiny arrangements. 
 

Page 22



  
 

  

6.9.4 
 
 
 
6.9.5 
 
 
 
 
 
6.9.6 
 
 
 
 
 
6.9.7 

The work to develop regional scrutiny is ongoing and will need to be taken 
through Council decision making processes so that the new regional scrutiny 
can be formed to begin its role of scrutinising the Gwent PSB. 
 
The first formal activity the regional scrutiny will be involved in will be as a 
consultee to the new regional well-being assessment (Section 38 of the Act). 
Given the timeline at Appendix 1 this is likely to be in February 2022. 
Thereafter, the proposed Regional Scrutiny will take oversight of the Gwent 
Well-being Plan from 2023. 
 
The discussions with Scrutiny Managers are considering: 

 Formation of the regional scrutiny 

 The continued scrutiny of the current well-being plan 

 Ongoing scrutiny of local level PSB activity once the new PSB is 
formed 

 
To strengthen the relationship with the Regional Scrutiny Committee the 
Chair and Vice-chair should be aware of the Boards work and should be 
sent all agendas, minutes, and papers. It is proposed that the Chair of the 
Regional Scrutiny would also be invited to all regional PSB meetings. 

 
Background Documents /Electronic Links  

 Appendix 1 – Existing PSBs Partnership Structure 

 Appendix 2 – Future Regional Partnership Structure 

 Appendix 3 – Proposed Gwent PSB & Well-being Plan Timeline 

 Appendix 4 – Regional PSB Assessment Planning 

 Appendix 5 – Draft Terms of Reference for the Gwent PSB 

 Appendix 6 – Gwent PSB & RPB Partnership Landscape 
 

Background papers: 

Well-being Assessments for Gwent 

 Newport 

 Caerphilly 

 Blaenau Gwent 

 Torfaen 

 Monmouthshire 
Wellbeing Plans for Gwent 

 Newport’s Well-being Plan 2018-23 

 The Caerphilly We Want 2018 – 2023 

 The Blaenau Gwent We Want 2018-2023 

 Well-being Plan for Torfaen 2018 - 2023 

 Monmouthshire Public Service Board Well-being Plan 2018-23 
 

PSB websites 

 The Blaenau Gwent We Want 

 The Caerphilly We Want 

Page 23

http://www.newport.gov.uk/atlas/en/Profiles/Newport-community-wellbeing-profiles.aspx
https://www.caerphillypsb.co.uk/well-being-plan/well-being-assessment/
https://www.blaenaugwentpsb.org.uk/well-being-assessment.aspx
http://www.torfaenpublicservicesboard.co.uk/en/Well-being-Assessment/The-Well-being-Assessment.aspx
https://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/our-monmouthshire/
https://onenewportlsb.newport.gov.uk/oneNewport/Well-being-Plan/Well-being-Plan.aspx
https://www.caerphillypsb.co.uk/well-being-plan/the-caerphilly-we-want-2018-2023/
https://www.blaenaugwentpsb.org.uk/well-being-plan.aspx
http://www.torfaenpublicservicesboard.co.uk/en/Well-being-Plan/Well-being-Plan.aspx
https://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/our-monmouthshire/
https://www.blaenaugwentpsb.org.uk/
https://www.caerphillypsb.co.uk/


  
 

  

 Our Monmouthshire 

 One Newport 

 Torfaen Public Services Board 

Page 24

https://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/our-monmouthshire/
http://www.newport.gov.uk/oneNewport/One-Newport-Homepage.aspx
http://www.torfaenpublicservicesboard.co.uk/en/Homepage.aspx


Executive Committee and Council only 
Date signed off by the Monitoring Officer: N/A 
Date signed off by the Section 151 Officer: N/A  

 

Appendix 1 - Existing PSBs Partnership Structure 
 

 
  

P
age 25



  
 

  

Appendix 2 – Future Regional Partnership Structure 
 

 

P
age 26



Executive Committee and Council only 
Date signed off by the Monitoring Officer: N/A 
Date signed off by the Section 151 Officer: N/A  

 

Appendix 3 
 
The proposed timeline for a Gwent PSB will mean that a new PSB is in place by September 2021 to 

develop the next phase of the Well-Being Plan as outlined below  (statutory deadlines). 

Date Item 

Mar 2021 Gwent PSB approach agreed by G10 

Mar/ Apr 2021 

Paper taken to each PSB which will detail the decision to move to a regional 

PSB and how this will be done.  

Plans for local arrangements discussed. 

Agreement from each PSB for this to go ahead. 

Apr/ Jul 2021 

Report to each LA scrutiny committee. 

Regional scrutiny process agreed.  

Formally agreed by each Local Authority/ organisation as required 

Apr – Oct 2021 PSB to draft Well-being Assessment 

May – Aug 2021 
PSB to undertaken a public engagement process for the Well-being 

Assessment 

Jun – Jul 2021 

Final PSBs are held in each area.  

Paper on local arrangements agreed and signed off by each PSB. 

ToR for the regional PSB is formally signed off by each individual PSB. 

Date for first regional PSB is set.  

Lead Local Authority agreed. 

Sep 2021 

Regional PSB is created  

First meeting must be held within 60 days (30th October). 

The first meeting will need to be chaired by a LA. 

Local boards established.  

Nov 2021 Consultation Draft Assessment agreed by PSB 

Dec 2021 – Jan 

2022 

Consultation Period for the Well-being Assessment for all stakeholders 

Feb 2022 – Mar 

2022 

Redrafting Well-being Assessment in light of consultation 

Page 27



  
 

  

Apr 2022 Final version of Well-being Assessment agreed by Gwent PSB 

May 2022 

Publish Regional Well-being Assessment 

Copy of Assessment to Welsh Ministers, Commissioner, Auditor General for 

Wales, Scrutiny Committee 

May 2022 – Oct 

2022 

PSB to develop response analysis to inform the Local Wellbeing Plan 

Seek advice from the Future Generations Commissioner 

PSB to develop Local Well-being Plan 

Nov 2022 – Jan 

2023  

Statutory Consultation of the Well-being Plan 

Feb 2023 – Mar 

2023 

Redrafting Well-being Plan 

Apr 2023 Final version of Well-being Assessment agreed by Gwent PSB 

May 2022 
Publish Regional Well-being  Plan - copy of Plan to Welsh Ministers, 

Commissioner, Auditor General for Wales, Scrutiny Committee 

Page 28



Executive Committee and Council only 
Date signed off by the Monitoring Officer: N/A 
Date signed off by the Section 151 Officer: N/A  

 
Appendix 4 – Regional PSB Assessment Planning 

 

P
age 29



Executive Committee and Council only 
Date signed off by the Monitoring Officer: N/A 
Date signed off by the Section 151 Officer: N/A  

 
Appendix 5 - Draft Terms of Reference of the regional PSB (June 2021) 

 

Gwent PSB ToR 

draft.docx
 

Page 30



Executive Committee and Council only 
Date signed off by the Monitoring Officer: N/A 
Date signed off by the Section 151 Officer: N/A  

 
Appendix 6 - Gwent PSB & RPB partnership landscape with statutory duties 

 

P
age 31



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Public Services Board Scrutiny Committee
	5 Move towards Regional Gwent PSB

